
Resolution Agreement 

Northern Illinois University  

OCR Case No. 05-18-2035 

 

The U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights (OCR) and Northern Illinois 

University (University) enter into this Resolution Agreement (Agreement) to resolve the 

allegation of the above-referenced complaint.  The Agreement does not constitute an admission 

of liability, non-compliance, or wrongdoing by the University.  The University assures OCR that 

it will take the following actions to comply with the requirements of Section 504 of the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), 29 U.S.C. § 794, and its implementing regulation at 34 

C.F.R. Part 104, and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Title II), 42 U.S.C. 

§§ 12131-12134, and its implementing regulation at 28 C.F.R. Part 35, which prohibit 

discrimination on the basis of disability by a recipient of Federal financial assistance and public 

entities, respectively.   

 

Policies and Procedures 

 

1. By May 30, 2018, the University will revise its general Non-Discrimination Statement 

and Non-Discrimination/Harassment Policy to ensure it includes the following 

information: 

 

a. A statement to its students, staff, and the general public that it does not 

discriminate on the basis of disability in violation of Section 504 and/or Title 

II; and   

b. The name and/or title of the responsible employee designated to coordinate 

the University’s efforts to comply with Section 504 and Title II and the 

appropriate contact information (address, telephone number and email 

address). 

 

2. Starting June 30, 2018, the University will adopt, implement, and widely publish the 

revised Non-Discrimination Statement and Non-Discrimination/Harassment Policy 

referenced in Item #1.  Publication will include written notice to the University 

community, including students, administration, and staff.  The University will make such 

notification(s) available through its website, revised student handbook(s) orand other 

similar publications, and any regularly issued publications (print or electronic) in which 

the University typicallyis required to includes the Non-Discrimination Statement and 

Non-Discrimination/Harassment Policy, as well as by any other additional means of 

notification the University deems effective to ensure that the information is widely 

disseminated.  

 

REPORTING REQUIREMENT:  By June December 30, 2018, the University will 

provide to OCR with documentation that it has completed Item #1, including copies of 

any written notice(s) to students, administrators, and staff regarding the revised Non-

Discrimination Statement and Non-Discrimination/Harassment Policy and a description 

of how the notices were distributed, copies of any revised student handbooks or other 
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similar publications, copies of any publications, a link to any webpage, and a copy of any 

other documentation of notification used by the University. 

  

Training 

 

3. By September 30, 2018, the University will provide training to employees of the 

Department of Curriculum and Instruction (C&I) and Student Performance Review (SPR) 

Committee members regarding the rights of students with disabilities.  Specifically, the 

training will address the University’s obligations not to discriminate under Section 504 

and Title II, and include the following at a minimum: 

 

a. The definition of a qualified student with a disability. 

 

b. The prohibition against discrimination against students with disabilities by being 

excluded from participation in, being denied the benefits of, or otherwise being 

subjected to discrimination under any postsecondary education aid, benefits, or 

services and explain what employees should do if they receive a report of possible 

disability discrimination from a student, including the duty of all employees to 

immediately report disability discrimination to the Section 504/Title II 

Coordinator, and the possible disciplinary consequences for failure to report. 

 

c. A review of the University’s Section 504/Title II policies and procedures, 

including an explanation and examples of disability discrimination and 

consequences that may apply for violation of the University’s Section 504/Title II 

policies and procedures by contractors or staff. 

 

d. A review of the steps to take if they receive information suggesting that a student 

teacher was dismissed from a clinical rotation based on actual risks and not mere 

speculation, stereotypes, or generalizations about people with disabilities. 

 

Prior to the training, OCR and the University will collaborate on the contents of the 

training required under this Item. 

 

REPORTING REQUIREMENT:  By September 30, 2018, the University will provide 

to OCR documentation that the University has provided the training referenced in Item 

#3, including the date(s) of the training(s), the name(s) and title(s) of the trainer(s), a 

copy of any materials used or distributed during the training, and a sign-in sheet with the 

names, titles, and signatures of attendees of the training.  

4. By September 30, 2018, the University will provide training to COE students on Section 

504 and Title II’s prohibition against discrimination on the basis of disability in all 

programs and activities of the University, including COE student teaching program and 

contractual placements.  The training will include: 
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a. Information about a student’s right to file an internal complaint alleging disability 

discrimination with the University’s Affirmative Action and Equity Compliance 

Office.   

 

b. A general overview of Section 504 and Title II, including how the law’s 

nondiscrimination provisions apply to students, the names and contact 

information for the designated staff members to whom students and others may 

report allegations of disability discrimination, where to locate the University’s 

Non-Discrimination/Harassment Policy on the University’s website, and the 

existence of OCR and its authority to enforce Section 504 and Title II. 

 

REPORTING REQUIREMENT:  By September 30, 2018, the University will provide 

to OCR documentation that it has provided the training referenced in Item #4, including 

the date(s) of the training(s), the name(s) and title(s) of the trainer(s), a copy of any 

materials used or distributed during the training, and a sign-in sheet with the names, 

titles, and signatures of attendees of the training. 

 

Meet and Confer with the District 

 

5. By September 30, 2018, the University will meet with a representative of the DeKalb 

Community School District #428 (District) and the principal of Jefferson Elementary 

School to reaffirm their mutual agreement that University students placed in the District 

will not be subjected to discrimination based on disability in violation of Section 504 or 

Title II during their student teaching placements.     

 

REPORTING REQUIREMENT:  By September 30, 2018, the University will provide 

to OCR documentation that it has met with the District and covered the topics referenced 

in Item #5. 

 

Individual Remedies 

 

6. By September 30, 2018, the University will change the Complainant’s official University 

transcript to reflect the Complainant’s grade in TLEE 385 as a W (withdraw). 

 

REPORTING REQUIREMENT:  By September 30, 2018, the University will provide 

to OCR a copy of the Complainant’s transcript evidencing that it has changed the 

Complainant’s TLEE 385 grade as referenced in Item #6.  

 

7. By September 30, 2018, the University will offer the Complainant the opportunity to 

retake TLEE 385 at no cost or will reimburse in accordance with the University’s 

reimbursement procedures the Complainant for the tuition she paid for TLEE 385 in fall 

2017. 

 

REPORTING REQUIREMENT:  By September 30, 2018, the University will provide 

to OCR documentation that it has made the offer or reimbursement referenced in Item #6. 
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The University understands that by signing this Agreement, it agrees to provide data and other 

information in a timely manner in accordance with the reporting requirements of this Agreement.  

Further, the University understands that during the monitoring of this Agreement, if necessary, 

OCR may visit the University, interview staff and students, and request such additional reports or 

data as are necessary for OCR to determine whether the University has fulfilled the terms of this 

Agreement.  Upon the University’s satisfaction of the commitments made under the Agreement, 

OCR will close the case.  

 

The University understands and acknowledges that OCR may initiate administrative enforcement 

or judicial proceedings to enforce the specific terms and obligations of this Agreement.  Before 

initiating administrative enforcement (34 C.F.R. §§ 100.9, 100.10), or judicial proceedings to 

enforce this Agreement, OCR shall give the University written notice of the alleged breach and 

sixty (60) calendar days to cure the alleged breach. 

 

 

 

_____________________________    _______________________ 

For the University      Date 




